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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. 2020
was an extraordinarily difficult year. Impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the economies across the globe have been adversely affected by different
extent of severity. The China’s economy, being the second largest and one
of the largest trading partner in the world, was not immune from it and
shrank in the first quarter of 2020 for the first time in decades. Through
effective implementation of a series of epidemic containment measures
by strong governance, the situation got under control and the economy
bounced back notably in the second half bringing its GDP in 2020 to
a mild year-on-year growth of 2.3%. However, the overall customer’s
spending and certain hardest hit aviation and hospitality sectors are not
recovered to the pre-pandemic level. The financial market has been
turbulent when some of the industry leaders and state-own enterprises
of the affected sectors experienced liquidity problems to repay debts.
Being engaged in financial market in the PRC, the Group’s performance
succumbed to it and recorded a significant loss of HK$356.6 million in
2020 (2019: HK$51.0 million) mostly derived by the impairment loss on
the receivables of recourse business in the financial leasing segment.
Against all the odds, the Group relentlessly looked for an impetus. The
Group initiated trading business of medical and health products and then
acquired entire interest in Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”) to horizontally
integrate with its wholesaling business of personal and household hygiene
products and its extensive distribution network with small-medium size
pharmaceutical shops in Hong Kong. It is believed that the demand of
related products continues to look promising as a result of increase in
public health awareness during the pandemic. It diversifies the business
risk of the Group and will possibly give a boost to the Group'’s financial
result in the future.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year under review, the financial leasing segment recorded a
segment loss of HK$234.0 million mainly driven by impairment losses
on the receivables of HK$199.4 million (2019: HK$45.8 million). The
food additives business, being classified under others in the segment
information, recorded a net loss of HK$17.1 million in 2020 (2019:
HK$12.6 million). The investment segment recorded a greater net profit
of HK$12.1 million in 2020 (2019: net profit of HK$0.7 million). The
trading segment, commenced in 2020, recorded a net loss of HK$5.5
million mainly due to the start up cost in the developing business and
fair value loss on the contingent consideration receivable arising from the
acquisition of Tripler. After considering the corporate expenses (2020:
HK$98.3 million; 2019: HK$35.8 million), share of results of associates
(2020: share of net losses of HK$5.7 million; 2019: share of net profits
of HK$29.4 million), impairment loss on reclassification of interest in an
associate as asset held for sales of HK$31.0 million (2019: nil), certain
unallocated other income, gains and losses (2020: net gain of HK$34.6
million; 2019: net gain of HK$12.0 million), finance cost and other
expenses, income taxation (2020: expense of HK$14.0 million; 2019:
credit of HK$1.8 million), the Group recorded a net loss of HK356.6
million (2019: net loss of HK$51.0 million) and a net loss attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$242.9 million in 2020 (2019: net loss
of HK$34.1 million).

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In spite of the enormous challenging environment in China and the
globe posed by the pandemic and the geopolitical tensions, the Group
is confident to weather any adversity that may lie ahead by lie ahead by
the experienced management team, sound risk management and robust
internal control. By leveraging the existing resources and capabilities,
the Group will cautiously and diligently look for new potential growth
opportunities, undervalued assets and business expansion in order to
diversify the income sources and attain a long term growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERH S

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Here, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to extend
my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all the staff and the
Directors, as well as the support to the Company from all our customers,
creditors, business partners and the shareholders. We will adhere to
proven management strategy, grasp market trend and opportunities,
and endeavour to bring greater value to our shareholders and make new
contribution to the community.

Wong Lik Ping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$66.2 million in 2020 as compared
with HK$71.2 million in 2019, gross loss of HK$16.4 million in 2020 as
compared with the gross profit of HK$21.8 million in 2019 and net loss of
HK$356.6 million in 2020 as compared to the net loss of HK$51.0 million
in 2019.

For the year under review, the Financial Leasing Segment has contributed
a segment loss of HK$234.0 million, as compared with a segment loss
of HK$45.8 million in 2019 (definition of segment profit or loss and
detailed analysis set out in note 6). The increase in loss is mainly due to
the increase in impairment loss on finance lease and loan receivables by
HK$163.3 million and the increase in operating loss by HK$24.9 million
mainly as a result of the net negative interest spread of two financial
leasing businesses on recourse basis where the interest cost accrued from
the borrowings was greater than the income from the respective defaulted
receivables.

The Food Additives Business, classified under others in the segment
information, mainly carried out manufacturing and sale of solid sorbitol
and compound food additives. It also performed research & development
of new products such as Advantame, highly extreme sweeteners and
EPS, clinic diagnostic reagent. During the year under review, the segment
recorded a net loss of HK$17.1 million in 2020, up HK$4.5 million as
compared with HK$12.6 million in 2019. The increase in loss is mainly
attributable to an one-off impairment loss on the property, plant and
equipment of HK$5.1 million. The persistent loss was mainly due to
the segment operation disrupted and slashed demand caused by the
COVID-19 in most of the first half of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

The Investment segment recorded a net profit of HK$12.1 million in 2020
as compared with the net profit of HK$0.7 million in 2019. The improved
result in 2020 was a net effect of (i) increase in fair value gain on financial
asset at FVTPL from a net loss of HK$7.8 million in 2019 to a net gain
of HK$6.0 million in 2020, (ii) increase in fair value gain on and rental
income from investment properties of HK$5.0 million, further net off with
(iii) decrease in loan interest income of HK$10.1 million from money
lending business.

Trading segment includes (i) a newly acquired business in August 2020
which carries out production, wholesale, distribution and trading of daily
necessities, including personal care and sanitising products as well as
face masks under its own brand or as OEM for other brands and related
commercial activities in Hong Kong (the “New Business”) and (ii) sale of
medical and heath products in Hong Kong that commenced in the first
half of 2020. Due to the greater start-up cost incurred in the developing
stage of the trading business and fair value loss on the contingent
consideration receivable arising from the acquisition of the New Business,
the segment recorded a net loss of HK$5.5 million (2019: nil).

After considering the corporate expenses (2020: HK$98.3 million; 2019:
HK$35.8 million), share of results of associates (2020: share of net
losses of HK$5.7 million; 2019: share of net profits of HK$29.4 million),
impairment loss on reclassification of interest in an associate as asset held
for sales of HK$31.0 million (2019: nil), certain unallocated other income,
gains and losses (2020: gain of HK$37.3 million; 2019: gain of HK$12.0
million), finance cost and other expenses, income taxation (2020: expense
of HK$14.0 million; 2019: credit of HK$1.8 million), the Group recorded
a net loss of HK356.6 million (2019: net loss of HK$51.0 million) and a
net loss attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$242.9 million in
2020 (2019: net loss of HK$34.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A significant increase in net loss from HK$51.0 million in 2019 to
HK$356.6 million in 2020 was primarily due to the increase in impairment
loss on the finance lease and loan receivables of HK$163.3 million,
the decrease in gross profit of HK$38.2 million primarily as a result of
negative net interest spread from Financial Leasing Segment, an one-off
impairment loss and the relevant income tax of HK$45.0 million upon the
reclassification and disposal of remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao
Lanshan, decrease in sharing of the net profits of associates of HK$35.1
million and increase in staff cost especially the management incentive
expenses.

Revenue and gross profit

During the year, the Financial Leasing Segment recorded revenue and
gross loss of HK$21.6 million and HK$22.0 million (2019: revenue of
HK$56.4 million and gross profit of HK$10.6 million), representing 33%
and 134% of the Group's revenue and gross loss respectively (2019: 79%
and 49% respectively). The revenue of this segment mainly represents (i)
service fee income for financing arrangement and consultancy services
and (ii) interest income generated from financial leasing and provision
of loan facilities. The cost of sales mainly represents (i) service cost
to banks and other non-bank financial institutions on various kinds of
factoring and consultancy services and (ii) interest expenses on back-to-
back borrowings from banks and other non-bank financial institutions.
The main customer base primarily includes large corporations covering
industries of energy resources, manufacturing, transportation and public
utility construction.

During the year, the segment saw a persistent slump on revenue. The
segment has been grappling with the unfavorable operating environment
in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”), especially the stringent
regulatory oversight of the industry which inhibits the segment from
obtaining back-to-back credits from banks to finance the prospective
finance lease transactions and resulted in reduction in the number of
the conventional finance lease transaction and the service fee income
therefrom. The gross loss was incurred primarily because of the negative
net interest spread of two financial leasing projects on recourse basis
where the interest cost accrued from the borrowings was greater than
the income from the respective delinquent receivables. The magnitude of
such outnumbered gross profit of the segment and even the Group'’s and
consequently turned them into the gross loss position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

The money lending business and property development (both classified
under the Investment segment) recorded revenue and gross profit both
at HK$4.2 million in 2020 (2019: both at HK$12.7 million in 2019),
representing 6% and negative 26% of the Group’s revenue and gross loss
respectively (2019: 18% and 58% respectively). The revenue represents
loan interest income from the provision of loan facilities carried out by
a licensed subsidiary in Hong Kong and rental income from letting out
office properties in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Liaoning in the PRC.
The reduction in the segment revenue and gross profit is mainly due to
decrease in loan interest as a result of the decrease in provision of loan
volume in 2020.

The food additives business recorded revenue of HK$3.5 million (2019:
HK$2.0 million) and gross loss of HK$1.8 million in 2020 (2019: HK$1.5
million). The revenue and cost of sales of the business mainly represent
the sales income and manufacturing cost of solid sorbitol from the
production base in the Liaoning province, the PRC respectively. Due to
lack of economy of scale mainly as a result of the lower-than-expected
productivity of the established line hampered by the COVID-19 and others,
the business still recorded the gross loss in 2020.

The trading segment just commenced and recorded revenue and gross
profit of HK$36.8 million and HK$3.2 million in 2020 respectively in which
HK$7.0 million and HK$2.8 million were contributed by the New Business
since the acquisition.

The decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly caused by the decrease
in revenue of the Financial Leasing Segment, partially offset by the growth
in revenue of the trading segment. The turning into the gross loss position
was mainly caused by the above-said negative net interest spread from
the two financial leasing projects outnumbering the gross profit from other
segments.

Other income

The other income of the Group in 2020 mainly comprised of dividend
income from equity investment at FVOCI, bank interest income, interest
income from trust products and highly liquid wealth management
investments issued by the non-bank financial institutions in the PRC and
the government subsidies of the employment support scheme launched
by the Hong Kong government. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in interest income from banks and trust products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other gains and losses

The other gains and losses in 2020 amounted to net gain of HK$34.8
million (2019: net loss of HK$0.6 million), mainly comprising of fair value
gain on an unlisted option (classified as financial liability at FVTPL) of
HK$15.7 million (2019: HK$11.7 million) and foreign exchange gain of
HK$17.8 million (2019: loss of HK$0.5 million).

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the year
mainly included staff costs (including directors and chief executive’s
emoluments) of HK$94.3 million (2019: HK$35.5 million), legal and
professional, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and various
administrative expenses. The increase was primarily due to increase in
discretionary management incentive expenses in 2020.

Share of associates’ results

The share of results of associates amounted to net loss of HK$5.7 million
as compared with net profit of HK$29.4 million in 2019. The reasons for
such adverse change is twofold. One is the shorter profit sharing period
of a profitable associate (i.e. Rizhao Lanshan) from a full year in 2019 to
only a half year in 2020. The other reason is the sharing of a significant
operating loss due to recognition of impairment losses of loan receivables
from a new associate which is engaged in money lending business in
Hong Kong.

Income taxation

Income tax expense for the year amounted to HK$14.0 million (2019:
income tax credit of HK$1.8 million), mainly comprising of the net effect
of (i) the income tax expense of HK$19.6 million relating to the disposal of
equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan and (i) partially offset by the deferred tax
credit of HK$5.6 million from undistributed profits of the same classified
as an associate upon the disposal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

FINANCIAL POSITION

The total asset amount of the Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted
to HK$1,185.7 million, representing a decrease of HK$361.0 million
as compared with HK$1,546.7 million as at 31 December 2019.
The decrease in total asset was mainly due to the above-mentioned
impairment loss on finance lease and loan receivables and repayment of
finance lease receivables from the existing finance lease projects. Likewise
but with lesser extent, the Group’s total liabilities and borrowings as at
31 December 2020 dropped to HK$611.1 million and HK$473.4 million
by HK$74.6 million and HK$119.9 million from HK$685.7 million and
HK$593.3 million as at 31 December 2019 respectively. The gearing
ratios (measured as total liabilities over total asset) increased from 44.3%
as at 31 December 2019 to 51.5% as at 31 December 2020 mainly
as a result of the above-mentioned two financial leasing projects on
recourse basis where the delinquent receivables were impaired while
the corresponding borrowings remained unchanged. The current ratios
(measured as total current assets over total current liabilities) decreased
from 1.4 as at 31 December 2019 to 1.1 as at 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, deposits placed with non-bank financial
institutions and cash of approximately HK$192.4 million (of which
HK$20.7 million was pledged to the banks to secure bank borrowings
granted to the Group for financial leasing business (2019: HK$19.5
million)) as compared to HK$217.1 million as at 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other borrowings
amounting to HK$458.6 million (2019: HK$523.7 million), HK$14.8
million (2019: HK$55.7 million) and nil (2019: HK$13.9 million) which
are due within one year, one to two years and two to five years respectively.

For the year under review, the Group has financed its operations with
facilities provided by banks and other non-bank financial institutions, issue
of new shares and internally generated cash flows.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
no material foreign currency exposure as material transactions such as
revenue and cost of sales were denominated in local currencies in which
the relevant entities operated.

CREDIT EXPOSURE

The Group's major credit risk is primarily attributable to finance lease
receivables and loan receivables.

Any deterioration in collectability of the finance lease receivables and loan
receivable from a sale-leaseback transaction and the underlying quality
of leased assets and collaterals could adversely affect our business and
financial conditions. In order to mitigate those credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for evaluation of credit
risk stemming from the financial viability of customers and guarantors (if
any) and the prospect of the industries in which the customers operate
and critical assessment on adequacy of the value of the leased assets,
collaterals and any forms of securities provided by customers at the
inception of the lease. Throughout the lease term, the Group closely
monitored the recoverability and will consider requesting additional
collaterals or any form of security from customers in case of any adverse
change in credibility.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment loss on a finance
lease receivable of HK$140.1 million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$33.6
million) was related to a finance lease transaction with a principle amount
of RMB200.0 million or equivalent to HK$237.5 million, secured by
machineries and equipment initially worth more than the principle
amount, and guaranteed by the customer’s ultimate holding company
which is regarded as one of the largest Chinese state-owned aluminum
product manufacturer. The transaction was fully financed by a back-
to-back bank borrowing on recourse basis. Given the deteriorating
creditability of the said customer, who has defaulted since 2019, and the
guarantor as a result of the application of reorganisation petitions being
granted against it and the said customer by a provincial court in June
2020, the provision for impairment loss increased remarkably.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
&@E HTDW& \1;)?

As at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment loss on a loan
receivable from sale-leaseback transaction of HK$108.1 million was
related to a finance lease transaction with Sanya Phoenix International
Airport Company Limited (the “Customer”) at a principle amount of
RMB135.0 million or equivalent to HK$160.3 million, secured by aviation
facilities and other security(ies) initially worth more than the principle
amount and guaranteed by HNA Airport Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. The
reason for a significant increase in recognition of impairment loss on the
loan receivable from the Customer as compared with that of HK$5.7
million in 2019, because of the worsening credibility of the Customer who
defaulted in January 2020 and the recent reorganisation petitions both
served against the customer and the guarantor, details of which refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 11 February 2021.

The key considerations of the calculations of the above-mentioned two
provisions at least include the estimated recoverable amount of the
securities, empirical loss rate of the relevant industry, estimated time of
recovery and other relevant forward-looking factors with the assistance of
independent professional valuer as management's adviser.

In response to the two defaulted customers of the recourse business
under the reorganisation petitions, the Group has taken/will take a series
of actions to protect the Group’s assets including but not limited to seeking
legal advice and appointment of the relevant PRC legal practitioners to
follow up with the legal matters, registering of debt declaration return
forms with practitioner to assert the receivable amount, guarantee and
securities in due course, continuous communication and participation
of meetings with practitioners to understand the current development of
the customers, and more importantly, continuous negotiation with the
relevant borrowers to amend the deal structure so much so that fully or
partially retract the Group from it. With the experienced management
and professional team, the Group is capable to manage the credit risk to
a controllable level, and therefore takes a view that they will not currently
have an adverse impact on the Group’s operations.

Before investing in other loan receivables, the Group also assesses the
credit quality of the loan borrowers & guarantors (if any), evaluation of the
value & liquidity of the collaterals, and defines the terms of the loans. The
Group regularly monitored recoverability to ensure prompt follow up action
is taken to recover any overdue debt.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the restricted bank deposits of HK$20.7
million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$19.5 million) and the finance lease
receivables of HK$ 97.4 million (2019: HK$283.4 million) were pledged to
the banks and other non-bank financial institutions for facilities granted to
the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of HK$0.1
million (2019: HK$0.1 million) for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

PROSPECT

2020 is a difficult year for the Group, especially for the Financial Leasing
Segment in the PRC. The pandemic has wreaked havoc on almost every
sector to a different extent, the aviation and hospitality sectors are one
of the hardest hit. Some of the customers of the segment experienced
unprecedented operating difficulties and heightened liquidity risk to repay
their debts, even though they are a state-owned enterprise or an industry
leader. Being engaged in financial industry, the Group’s performance
succumbed to the headwind and recorded a significant loss mostly from
the impairment loss on the receivables of recourse business.

Looking ahead, with the commencement of the use of vaccines for
COVID-19, the pandemic is expected to be under control while the global
economy is expected to recover steadily in a loose monetary environment
and under government financial supports. China was a major economy
that has recovered relatively rapidly as a result of effective epidemic
containment measures. However, the long term economic prosperity
of China may be hindered by the escalating geopolitical tensions and
deglobalisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

As to the Financial Leasing Segment, the segment has been struggling
for a business transformation to prosper under the stringent regulatory
requirements. To that end, the segment has been exploring and
developing a new business model and opportunity such as bundling
finance lease transaction with letter of credit issued by banks to customers
that would lower their overall finance cost. Exploring and developing
new financing varieties other than the conventional way of factoring from
banks and peers will also continue to proceed. What's more, the segment
has been targeting and exploring business opportunities with customers
engaged in domestic consumption related industries and environmental
industry, those areas are currently supported by the Chinese government.
It is also imperative to adhere to the risk management and control policies
to critically oversee and timely manage the increasing or potentially
adverse change in credit risk of the existing and new finance projects. The
segment will closely monitor credit risk of each customer and promptly
take recovery actions over delinquent finance lease projects in a bid to
protect the Group's assets.

As to the Investment Segment, the Group will continue to adopt a
conservative investment strategy towards the investment portfolio
comprising of equity, debt and real estate. With the robust risk
management and control policies, the Group closely assess its
performance and optimize its composition in order to generate a stable
income and provide the necessary liquidity to the Group amid volatile
financial markets when needed.

As to the Food Additives Business, since full resumption of customers’
operation, the segment has almost restored the sale order amounts of
solid sorbitol seen in the pre-pandemic time especially in the last quarter
of 2020. It is anticipated such momentum will persist. In the meantime,
the segment will continue to enhance the production stability, diversify
the customer base in different provinces and industries, and optimize the
production to cut down on operating costs. The Group will closely assess
the segment performance and resume the expansion plan including
establishment of the second production line of solid sorbitol and the one of
Advantame in due course.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As to the Trading Segment, the Group will diversify the products and
broaden the customer base and distribution channels, either physical or
virtual, to bolster the business volume. To that end, the segment has been
granted a wholesaler licence in proprietary Chinese medicines (“PCMs”)
and applying for exclusive distributorship of certain PCMs and health
products. The recent acquisition of Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”),
details of its operation refer to the Company's announcement on 29
July 2020, has brought and will further bring about synergic effect by
gaining access to its extensive distribution network of small and medium
size dispensaries almost scattered every district of Hong Kong. Further
leveraging personal network and expertise of the new management in
the industry and the increase in public awareness of hygiene and health
during the pandemic, the future demand of pharmaceutical products,
health supplement, personal care and other medical products looks
promising. The Group will cautiously set aside sufficient resource to
cultivate the business and considers it as a growth impetus in the future.

Having faced the enormous challenging environment in China and
across the Globe in 2020, the Group is confident to weather any adversity
that may lie ahead by the experienced management team, sound risk
management and robust internal control. Heading toward the post-
pandemic time, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the economic
recovery. By leveraging the existing resources and capabilities, the Group
will cautiously and diligently look for new potential growth opportunities,
undervalued assets and business expansion in order to diversity the
income sources and attain a long term growth.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
DISPOSALS

At 31 December 2020, the Group held loan receivables (excluding from
a loan receivable from sale-leaseback transaction and those from money
lending business) of HK$47.1 million (2019: HK$95.0 million), equity
investments at FVOCI of HK$123.8 million (2019: HK$55.5 million) and
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$156.1 million (2019:
HK$25.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

During the year, the Group invested in loan receivables through 1 to 2
years trust products of HK$45.4 million (2019: HK$83.8 million) issued by
financial institutions in the PRC. The Group recorded loan interest income
from loan receivables amounting to HK$5.9 million (2019: HK$7.0 million)
and an impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$3.4 million (2019:
HK$1.2 million). The equity investment at FVOCI of HK$123.8 million
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$55.5 million) represented unlisted
equity securities issued by the PRC and Hong Kong private entities with
operations including property development in shopping malls, software
development in the PRC and SFC licensed business activities of type 1,
2,4, 5 and 9 in Hong Kong. There was a fair value loss of HK$3.6 million
recognised through other comprehensive income in 2020 (2019: nil) and
dividend income of HK$1.0 million recognised in profit or loss in 2020
(2019: nil).

The financial assets at FVTPL of HK$156.1 million as of 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$25.7 million) comprised of (i) 7 different listed and
unlisted equity fund products in the PRC of HK$88.0 million (2019: 2
unlisted equity fund products in the PRC of HK$14.9 million) and (ii)
numerous listed equity shares and bonds of HK$68.1 million in the Hong
Kong and the Chinese stock exchanges (2019: HK$10.8 million). There
was a fair value loss of HK$2.5 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020
(2019: fair value loss of HK$5.2 million).

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with Simagi Finance Company Limited (“Simagi”) to subscribe for
8,000,000 subscription shares or approximately 7.46% of the enlarged
share capital of the target company at a consideration of HK$40,000,000.
Simagi principally engages in money lending business in Hong Kong.
The investment has been accounted for as interest in an associate with
a shared loss of HK$21.1 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020
due to significant impairment loss on loans since the completion of the
subscription took place on 24 January 2020. Details of the subscription
in Simagi were disclosed in the announcements of the Company on 30
December 2019, 23 January 2020 and 24 January 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with Era Bright Limited (“Era Bright”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability to subscribe approximately 18.55% of the
enlarged share capital of Era Bright at consideration of HK$15,000,000.
Era Bright principally engages in money lending business in Hong Kong.
The investment has been accounted for as interest in an associate with a
shared loss of HK$0.5 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020 since the
completion took place on 17 March 2020.

On 13 July 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Top Insight Holdings Limited (“Top Insight”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and mainly engaged in
property investment and leasing activities in Hong Kong, to subscribe
the 350 subscription shares or 35% of the enlarged share capital of Top
Insight immediately after the subscription, at the aggregate subscription
price of HK$67,300,000 which was settled in kind by the Group by
transferring the entire issued share capital of Jumbo Hall International
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to Top Insight. The
investment has been accounted for as interest in an associate with a
shared loss of HK$1.8 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020 since
the completion took place on 16 July 2020. The Group is entitled to a
dividend income receivable of HK$1.2 million, being a guaranteed return
of 4% on the investment cost during the holding period in 2020. Details of
the subscription in the Top Insight were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company on 13 July 2020.

On 26 August 2020, the Group entered a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Disposal Agreement”) regarding a disposal (the “Disposal”)
of the remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan Wansheng
Harbour Company Limited (the “Rizhao Lanshan”) at a consideration
in accordance with the exercise price of the call option that the Group
granted pursuant to the call option undertaking dated 15 May 2018. On
23 October 2020, all conditions precedent of the Disposal Agreement
were fulfilled and the completion of the Disposal took place on 23 October
2020. The Group recorded a shared profit of HK$17.7 million from the
beginning of the year to the exercise date of the call option(i.e. 30 June
2020) (2019: HK$29.4 million). References of the Disposal are made to
the Company’s announcements dated 23 October 2020. Reference of
the grant of call option are also made to the Company’s announcements
dated 15 May 2018, the Company’s circular dated 25 June 2018 and the
Company’s poll result announcement dated 17 July 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 12 November 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with the Imagi Brokerage Limited (“Imagi Brokerage“), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in SFC licensed business of type
1,2, 4,5 and 9, to subscribe for 43,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$1.38 per subscription share. The consideration
for the subscription is HK$59,340,000. Upon the completion and as at 31
December 2020, when aggregated with the previous subscription shares,
the Group held a total of 55,500,000 shares of the Imagi Brokerage,
representing approximately 9.99% of the enlarged share capital of the
Imagi Brokerage. The investment has been accounted for as investment
held at fair value through other comprehensive income. There has
been no significant change in fair value since the acquisitions in 2020.
Details of the subscription in the Imagi Brokerage were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company on 12 November 2020.

On 27 November 2020, the Group purchased the land use right in
the land with total areas of approximately 119,000 sg.m. in Liaoning
Province, the PRC and the four factory buildings with a gross floor area
of about 40,528.12 sg.m thereon (the “Property”) in the consideration
of RMB56,260,000. The acquisition took place on 8 December 2020
when the Property was leased back to the vendor and accounted for as
investment property. Details of the acquisition and leaseback arrangement
refer to the announcement of the Company on 27 November 2020.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 103 (2019: 100)
employees (excluding employees of the Company’s associates) in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The employees are remunerated with basic salary,
bonus and other benefits in kind with reference to industry practice and
their individual performance.

A share option scheme was adopted on 29 July 2016. As at 31 December
2019, a total outstanding number of share options were granted to
the eligible employees, including directors of the Company, amounted
to 19,833,334. With no share options lapsed and new share options
granted during the year, the outstanding number of share options as at 31
December 2020 shrunk to 1,983,333 solely due to the completion of the
share consolidation of the basis of every 10 issued and unissued shares
consolidated into 1 consolidated share on 26 March 2020. Details of the
share options granted are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 January 2021, the Group entered into a loan agreement with an
individual, pursuant to which the Group provided a loan in the principal
amount of HK$56,000,000 for 12 months, interest bearing at a fixed
interest rate of 10% per annum, secured by the entire equity interest of a
company majority owned by the individual.

UPDATE ON USE OF PROCEED IN RELATION
TO FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 30 December
2019 and 31 March 2020 in relation to placing of placing of new shares
under general mandate and change in use of proceeds from the placing
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(collectively refer as to “Announcements”) and the 2020 interim report
dated 26 August 2020. Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used
herein shall bear the same meanings as defined in the Announcements.

Intended use of proceeds
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Actual and update on use of proceeds
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Total of HK$26.0 million for the Food Additives Business
in which (i) HK$19.7 million will be allotted to capital
expenditure and related expenses on establishing a

new production line for the manufacturing of crystalline
sorbitol and a new production line for the manufacturing
of Advantame (i) HK$6.3 million will be set aside

as additional working capital of the operation of the
production lines.

&$£26,000,0008 T AR B @A IIEIZERS  HREE
(i) 19,700,000 Tt R AN B E L EEEE M &
EFNE ARz K 8RR (i) 6,300,000 roiF #F
ZELEGEENRINESEE -

The remaining proceeds of HK$6.2 million will serve as
general working capital of the Group.

BR T FT18 086,200,000/ 8 TR E A A E B — AR
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The re-allocated HK$15.0 million will be for purchasing

of the medical, health and hygiene products for trading

purpose.

15,000,000 TEM DN EEFESRRNER
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(i) Due to the expansion plan of the Food Additives
Business was disrupted by the recent outbreak of the
COVID-19, HK$15.0 million out of HK$19.7 million

was re-allocated to the trading business. The remaining
proceeds of HK$4.7 million has been unutilised and
deposited into bank accounts of Hong Kong head office;
(ii) an amount of HK$6.3 million was fully utilized as
working capital of the Food Additives Business.
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An amount of HK$6.2 million was fully utilised as general
working capital of the Group.
6,200,000 T2 MR ERN —REEES

An amount of HK$15.0 million was fully utilised as
payment for purchasing the medical, health and hygiene
products for trading purpose.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULT OF PROFIT GUARANTEES AFTER
ACQUISITION

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 29 July 2020
and 21 August 2020 in relation to acquisition of the entire issued shares
in Tripler involving issue of consideration shares under general mandate.
According to an unaudited management account of Tripler for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the profit guarantee of not less than HK$6
million for the same period is met. However, the actual financial results of
Tripler for the same is still subject to potential adjustments and finalisation
of company level audit account of Triple by the Company’s auditor and
therefore the actual result of profit guarantee may be different.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OBJECTIVE OF THE REPORT

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is
pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
called “ESG”) Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year 2020"), with an aim to
provide details of the system establishment and performance of the Group
in terms of sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, highlights the environmental
and social measures and activities of the Group during the Year
2020. Corporate governance is addressed separately in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance lease and
related consulting services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
investment properties in the PRC and Hong Kong, investment in securities
and money lending business in Hong Kong, research and development,
manufacturing and sale of food additives, new food ingredients and
nutritional enhancers in the PRC and trading of medical and health care
products in Hong Kong. The Group mainly operates in Liaoning, Beijing
and Hong Kong. Therefore, the disclosures in this report focus on the
policies and performance of factory and offices in Liaoning, Beijing and
Hong Kong in the Year 2020 in relation to three environmental aspects
and eight social aspects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating
environmental and social strategy, defining the Group's objectives,
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. The Group's key
stakeholders include government, shareholders, customers, employees,
suppliers or service providers, community and the public. The Group
has conducted a survey, discussed or communicated with stakeholders
to understand their views and respond to their needs and expectations,
evaluated and prioritised their inputs to improve the Group’s performance,
and finally strived to provide value to the stakeholders.
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
Fn& HAZ R ER BB K [0l FE
Government o Operate in compliance with the law ° Law-abiding operations
BT HOEEE TERE
° Tax payment in accordance with the laws e Tax payment on time and in full
LR EERRER
Shareholders ° Implement corporate governance and o Optimise internal control and risk
B e create value management
BEThEERIRIEERE BB T R R S
° Information disclosure ° Release operating data in due course
ERIKE FEES NGRS ¢ 7
Customers ° Demand for funds o A wide range of financial leasing
b= HESMWEX products
e Direct communication EENREREER
BiRER . Direct hotline
. Food safety RERE
BmZE o Fulfil the requirements of ISO
° Guarantee product quality 22000:2005
EmE 2R FHERT&1S0 22000 : 200537 E

° Optimise the quality management
control
BLE S SRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B & RIS

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
FinE HAE R EKR B8 K [0l FE
Employees ° Career development platform ° Transparent promotion channel
(== EEERETA ZEENEFAEE
° Remuneration and benefits ° Competitive remuneration package
i Bt A BiRFIMEM A2
° Occupational health and safety ° Implement health and safety
BEREREZS management system
BERERENZ2EERR
Suppliers or service ° Receive payment on time ° Payment schedule
providers Tz B W ER AT =X EGE
e S AR TSR e Business ethics and credit standing e Fulfilment of obligations under any
EEEEREESE contract in accordance with laws

REBITEAESNETHEE

Community and the public
HERAR

Open up a financing channel for small
and medium-sized enterprises

FWFIEERMBERE

° Protect the nature

REBAR

Based on the stakeholder engagement, the Group has identified issues
with significant environmental and social impact and issues concerning
stakeholders.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

In the Year 2020, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial to the
Group’s business and were of the utmost concern to stakeholders. It helps
the Group to ensure its business development can meet the expectations
and requirements of stakeholders. The Group has identified 22 ESG
issues covering environmental, social and operation, and has invited both
internal and external stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG
issues through a scoring tool and interviews. The Group’s management
has reviewed the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then
disclosed the results in this report. The results of materiality assessment
prioritised stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material
aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.

° Provide sale and leaseback
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° Adhere to green operations
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The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year 2020: T ETEFEEAERRE - HENEAEENE
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Environmental issues
RIREH

Importance of topics to business
HEBEENmE

Social issues
HEEFE

High

|

Operation issues
CESEH

1. Greenhouse gas emissions
AERBBIEN

2. Energy consumption
AERIHFE

3. Water consumption
Ak

4. Waste
BEY)

B, Environmental impact of construction 13.

MIHIRENTE

6.  Green buildings certification
AR

7. Customer engagement in

environmental issues

ERHIRIEEEMNS A

8. Use of chemicals
FRtER

9. Local community engagement
EHirtE 2R

10.  Community investment
HeErE

11.  Occupational health and safety
Rz e

12.  Labour standards in supply chain

HAEFEAS TIRE

Training and development

Bl R

14.  Employee welfare
(E=EE]

15.  Inclusion and equal opportunities
OERTPEHRE

16. Talent attraction and retention

O 4P 52 ¥ BB A A
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17.  Economic value generated
FREAMKEEE

18.  Corporate governance
TEER

19.  Anti-corruption
k&5

20. Supply chain management
HAEHEIE

21.  Customer satisfaction
BERMEE

22.  Customer privacy

ESEN



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMISSIONS

Emissions refer to air and greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the Group is the main
sources of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate
matter (PM) emission. It could likewise generate GHG such as carbon
dioxide (COz2), methane and nitrous oxide.

The Group believes that green transportation brings benefits, which
include reduction of transportation costs and reduction of energy
consumption and pollution. As such, the Group encourages optimising
transportation routes, high filling rate or carpooling and proper tire
pressure to achieve efficiency.

The Group reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their
commuting decisions to reduce air and greenhouse emissions. Employees
are encouraged to take public transportation as often as possible and
select fuel efficient vehicles. While employees are driving, it is suggested to
avoid unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, close windows when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

Electricity consumption of the Group is a major part of its GHG emissions.
Various electricity-saving policies have been established to reduce the
electricity consumption by the Group. The Group encourages staff
members to switch off light during daytime, maintain lamps well to keep
clean, use stairs instead of elevators, install energy-efficient lighting,
and disable the standby mode for all electrical appliances, including
computers, photocopiers and printers when they are not in use. Air
conditioning is required to be set no lower than 25°C in summer. It is
also required to ensure the windows and doors are closed while air-
conditioning is on, and turn off the air-conditioning after office hours or
after the usage of the meeting room.

In the Group’s Liaoning and Beijing offices, energy saving signs remind
staff members to turn off the lights and promote energy conservation. In
the Hong Kong office, light-emitting diode (“LED”) lamps were installed as
much as possible, and multi-purpose devices with printing, scanning and
photocopying functions were adopted to achieve electrical efficiency.

In order to address indirect emissions relating to paper waste deposited at
landfills, the Group encourages employees to apply computer technology
such as emails, electronic backup devices and storage devices to reduce
paper consumption, print on both sides of a sheet of paper, avoid
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unnecessary printing or copying on paper, adjust documents and use
space efficiency formats to optimise use of paper, and put recycling boxes
near the photocopiers to collect single-sided paper for reuse and used
double-sided paper for recycling.

In the Group's Beijing office, saving paper signs remind staff members
to optimise use of paper and reduce paper waste. The Group constantly
reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their commuting
decisions to reduce air and GHG emissions. Employees are encouraged
to take public transportation as often as possible and select fuel-efficient
vehicles. While employees are driving, it is recommended to avoid
unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, keep windows closed when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

The Group recognises the severity of indirect GHG emissions from
business travel by employees, and requires employees to utilise
teleconference instead of overseas meetings and choose railway rather
than airway for short distance travel to reduce the carbon footprint of
business travel.

The Group requires that discharges, if any, into waterways and land must
comply with relevant laws and regulations.

The Environmental Policy established by the Group encourages
employees to handle office waste generated in a proper and
environmentally friendly manner.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations. There was
no significant hazardous waste generated in view of the Group’s business
nature.

The Group promotes waste reduction practices including waste reduction
at source, reuse, clean recycling, recover and reduction of disposal at
landfills. Employees are encouraged to purchase supplies or equipment
with longer life-span, to install recycling bins to collect recyclables, such as
waste paper, glass or aluminium bottles, metal, and plastics, and to have
recyclers to collect recyclables.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In the Year 2020, there
was no case of material non-compliance with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (F1ZE A R AFEIRIE(RE %)
and other relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
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hazardous waste that have a significant impact on environment. In
addition, there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s emissions in

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B g RE G S

the Year 2020 are shown in the table below:

\—7—7

S

=

BT 2 o b >
RRLERACEEMIBAREKR

— =

EIREGIN TR

SENAEREZEYNEMABRERRER
TEER TERER
SRR AR BIIRE o

FE  AEESIYINIRRIRIZER

Unit Year 2020 Year 2019
Environmental indicators RIGIEE B ZEITFE —hEE
Air emissions o= BERBER =0
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions KA LYIINOYEER g% 10,248 7,028
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emissions e EYISONFER ) g 263 323
Particulate matter (PM) emission SR F(PM)BERRD g 757 525
GHG emissions RERBBHENR
Direct emissions (Scope 1) BiEEW EE1) kg COze 61,721 71,142
Fr
—althEg
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (M2 BRI FE2) ) kg COze 808,083 578,053
T
“@tiREE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) Mee HiBEHEm @EB) e kg COz 13,287 15,493
Fr
“athREE
Total GHG emissions 4 AERSHER MRS W) kg COze 883,091 664,437
Fr
“EtHREE
GHG emissions intensity BERBHREE kg COze 43 34
(per unit produced)
Fr
“EtHREE
(BEEEM)
Waste B4
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMEABEEREYES kg 1,010 617
T
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ FRES EEEEYZE kg 0.049 0.001
(per unit produced)
Fr
(BEEEMW)
Total hazardous waste produced e FTEEB EEEY) kg N/A N/A
4B 2 (i) Tz RiERA TEA
Hazardous waste produced intensity FMEXBEBEEYEE kg N/A N/A
(per unit produced) TER NEA
Fr
(BEEEM
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Note 1:  Air emissions include emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and motor

vehicles.

Note 2: The power supply discharge coefficient of Liaoning and Beijing is set at 0.9419 kg/

kWh.

Note 3:  The electricity consumption per unit for treatment of drinking water and sewage in

PRC are set at 0.6 and 0.28328 kWh respectively.

Note 4:  GHG emissions (direct and indirect) and its removal can be divided into the following

three separate areas:

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by
the Group including: (i) combustion of fuels in boiler to generate heat and
steam; and (ii) combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the
Group.

Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions resulting from generation of purchased electricity
that is consumed by the Group’s including the controlled equipment or its
operations within the physical building boundary for electricity purchased
from power companies.

Scope 3: All other indirect GHG emissions that occurred outside the Group, including
both upstream and downstream emissions including: (i) GHG emissions
due to electricity used for fresh water/sewage processing by the Water
Services Department/Drainage Services Department respectively; and (ii)
business travel by employees.

Note 5:  No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore, such disclosure is not

applicable to the Group. In the event when any hazardous waste is to be disposed of,
the Group would engage professional companies to handle it.

In accordance with policies stated above for the reduction of air and
GHG emissions from vehicles, the Group adopts the following measures:
(i) control the numbers of vehicles owned by the Group; (ii) control the
frequency of employees not to take public transportation for local business
commuting; and (iii) control the volume of business travel by employees.
The Group considers such measures had been achieved for the Year
2020.

Non-hazardous wastes are preferred to be recycled, otherwise, they are
sent for landfill or incineration. In accordance with policies stated above
for the reduction of non-hazardous wastes, the Group adopts the following
measures: (i) control the commercial wastes generated by employees; (ii)
control the waste of papers; and (iii) control the volume of non-hazardous
waste going direct to landfill or incineration without recycling. The Group
considers such measures had been achieved for the Year 2020.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials, in production, storage, transportation,
buildings, electronic equipment, etc., is one of the significant aspects to
protect environment.
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The Group established policies and procedures to reduce energy
consumption in the facility, to assess the energy efficiency, to increase
the use of clean energy, if possible, to set targets to monitor energy
consumption, to ensure power is turned off when electrical appliances are
not in use, and to admit natural daylight into workplace during the day.

The Group requires employees to reduce water consumption in the
offices. For example, employees are encouraged to fully empty any
containers before washing, to turn off water taps promptly, to check
faucets and pipes for leaks, and to adopt water saving appliances.

The total units of energy and water consumed by the Group and the
amount of total packaging material used for finished products in the Year
2020 are shown in the table below:

B & RIS

FEECHIEBRRIZF R & SERHFE > 51
e BRI ARG N AARAER 51128
RESRAEIHFE R T B Rz Ees
TWAERKRR TIEGFERA BRIt

FEBBERESTEWAZRL K HIIN > A&
E S RESINERAARA AN R ERIR
IKBETR ) IR B /KBETR A B BRI MR B RN/ AR
e

TR TRFE AEBEFTFEAER R KEEL
RSN faPi R B AR B HIN TR ¢

Unit Year 2020 Year 2019
Total use of resources HRFERGAE B —EITEE “E-hEE
Purchased electricity consumed FriERBENS KWh 859,634 599,241
FRE
Petrol consumed FREER S 0H kWh 173,512 213,041
TEEF
Total energy consumed AERARiES KWh 1,033,146 812,282
FREF
Energy consumption intensity HERE kWh 50 42
(per unit
produced)
FRE
(BEEBNM
Natural gas consumed FriERRAR m3 123,489 115,419
LK
Natural gas consumption intensity FIFEAXRAREE m3 6 6
(per unit
produced)
IHK
(BEEEM
Water consumption FEK m3 391 915
LK
Water consumption intensity FEKEE m3 0.019 0.047
(per unit
produced)
LK
(BEEEM
Total packaging material (paper) U TR S MR kg 3716 4717
used for finished products (#R) 2= T
Total packaging material (plastic) SUpK Gm P A B M L kg 3,880 3,036
used for finished products (ZBR)) Ha=E Fr
Amount of packaging material (paper) &1 E RHIBEM R kg 0.1794 0.2419
per unit produced ) = T
Amount of packaging material (plastic) &4 & SABY B EE A4} kg 0.1873 0.1557
per unit produced (BR) srE Fi5
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The Group’s ability to use energy efficiently can be revealed by its
intention and measures for the reductions in energy consumption. Energy
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. fluctuations
in energy supply and prices). The Group’s policies and measures specific
to managing energy use have been stated above. The Group considers
such policies had been adopted and measures had been achieved for the
Year 2020.

The Group’s ability to use water efficiently can be revealed by its
intention and measures for the reductions in water consumption. Water
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. reliance
on sources of water that may be considered sensitive due to their relative
size or function; or status as a possibly rare, threatened, or endangered
system; or to their possible support of a particular endangered species of
plant or animal).

The Group’s policies and measures regarding to use of water have been
stated above. The Group considers such policies had been adopted and
measures had been achieved for the Year 2020.

Energy saving measure

BBESRTE

Description and the result of measures

i e e A R

FEEBWAAEREN I UEBHEZFERE
FOHFERN BRI R ERIR - BRSNS FEE R
ERERNRIZEY BEMRAREES TR
(BInse R At R BARHDRED) - AEEFHH5E
TRE R BRI B ERANFE I B A LSt - A5
BR/N B TFEERMZ I BRI B

Hiff o

AEEA WA KB SE I BB E R K
ENEENERRER K EERT EAEE
AVERIR B B~ S B A e I B T LR (0 - 1k
52 0] BE R HARHY AR AR S Th SE MR 50 4% BRURKBY 2K
R HEFERFERN ZEEBIREEHR
BIARAS ; EH AR — R EREEN
;) ©

FEEFRAKNBRAIEMEE E X
EER/N T _TFECHEMZFERILE
PRENFEDE °

Water saving
EIAIFEIK

consumption for water processing.

Open recirculating system is installed in Liaoning’s factory in order to absorb process heat from
machineries. This system uses the same water over and over again, it can reduce electricity

EE TR ERNIVBIR A A UIRUE M E £ R FEE - Z 2 MR B EARERK FIE

DIKERIEBIZ PRI E 1 HFE

Electricity saving
HARE

Variable-frequency drives are installed on some of the machineries that do not need to be run at
full speed, such installation can reduce energy consumption and energy costs.

BIRRZENETERE2REFNES L HAlR D SR EFERIERMZS o
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Policies are established to consider
the actual impacts on environment and natural resources and to reduce
such impacts. The Group encourages environmental education and
advocacy among employees to motivate environmentally responsible
behaviour which helps fulfil the Group’s commitment to minimising its
adverse impacts on the environment.

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste production and disposal, and use of resources impacts the
environment, the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts,
and communicate the Group’s environmental policies, measures,
performance, and achievements to the stakeholders. No significant impact
on the environment and natural resources was caused in view of the
Group’s business nature. Policies and/or measures adopted specific to
managing potential impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources are mentioned above.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group established Staff Handbook covering topics such as: (i)
compensation and dismissal; (ii) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working
hours; (iv) rest periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-
discrimination; and (viii) other benefits and welfare.

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain talented
staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed periodically to
ensure consistency with employment market. Laws and regulations on
minimum wage and statutory social benefits are required to be followed.
Dismissal is required to comply with employment laws and regulations,
and to follow the internal policies and procedures, including policy on
prevention of dismissal purely on employees’ gender, marital status,
disability, or family status.

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent recruitment
strategy. Recruitment process includes application for recruitment,
description of position, collection of job applications, interview, selection,
approval, and job offering. Promotion is required to be based on
performance and suitability.
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Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare, including
social security benefits and mandatory provident fund, are required to be
in compliance with employment or labour laws and regulations. Selected
benefit programs, including medical coverage, are also provided.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours to
provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles of equality
and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration, promotion, and
benefits are required to be handled based on objective assessment, equal
opportunity and non-discrimination regardless of gender, race, or other
measures of diversity.

The composition of the Group’s workforce by gender, employment type,

age group and geographical region as of 31 December 2020 is stated as
follows:

WORKFORCE BY GENDER

¥R &l o
Female
fegls
34%

Male

66%

WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP

RERAENE D
Over 50 ye% rf/( Ojlg
50 L Under 30 years old
20% 30 ELX'Fy
26%

30-50 years old
30 E50 5%

54%
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The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
employment during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was
no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FEE AR HEFIEEHE), the Labour Contract Law
of the People’'s Republic of China (FZEANRENEEEEREE), the
Employment Ordinance ({8 {&1& 1) and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare on the Group. In addition, there was no
report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has established Health and Safety Policies covering topics
such as: (i) providing safe working environment; (ii) protecting employees
from occupational hazards; and (i) work-life balance. The Group is
committed to maintaining a healthy and safe workplace for employees,
and to preventing workplace injuries and illnesses.

The Group requires entities to establish and document policies and
procedures on safety for employees to follow, set targets for the safety of
employees, monitor the safety performance against the targets periodically
and report any safety incidents to management.

One of the key factors for successfully protecting employees from
occupational hazards is to train employees to protect themselves from
psychological and physical hazards. The Group encourages such training
to be delivered to employees.

The Group supports employees to enjoy leisure and sports activities
outside of workplace.

In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) pandemic, the Group has taken certain actions to
strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in factory and
offices in Liaoning, Beijing and Hong Kong to protect the health of its
employees. Employees are required to wear surgical face masks in factory
and office, apart from that, the Group has increased the frequency of
cleaning and sterilisation in working areas.

B & RIS
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FRRPEBFESE &

During the year, the Group temporarily
closed its factory in Liaoning in January
2020 following the imposition of order by
the government of PRC. On 17 February
2020, the Group has submitted a Letter
of Commitment to the Management
Committee of Chaoyang Jianping
Economic Development Zone and
enquired about resuming operation of its
factory and office in Liaoning. In order
to gain permission from the committee,
the Group has promised to take several
control and prevention measures for
protecting workers, including but not
limited to: (i) cleaning and sterilisation in
working areas twice a day (in the morning
and evening) and keeping records; (ii)
measuring body temperature twice a day
(in the morning and evening) and keeping
records; and (iii) providing epidemic prevention supplies to employees.

measures.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to health
and safety during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was no
case of material non-compliance with the Regulations on Work-Related
Injury Insurance of the People’s Republic of China (FAEE A R HAE T
SR %)) , the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (%% %
R EE{EH)) and the relevant laws and regulations relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards that have a significant impact. In addition, there was no report
of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has established Development and Training Policies covering
topics such as: (i) vocational training; and (i) training and resources
for the directors and senior management. The Group is committed to
providing adequate training to the employees to improve their knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work. Training includes vocational
training courses provided internally or externally.

The Group requires employees to attend internal and external training
courses including employee continuing education to improve employees’
knowledge and skills for their job positions.
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Training and development courses are offered throughout the Group to
upgrade employee skills and knowledge. During the year, all directors
participated in continuous professional development activities by reading
regulatory updates, and/or attending seminars or workshops relevant to
the business or directors’ duties.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group has established Labour Standards Policies covering topics
such as: (i) preventing child and forced labour; and (i) preventing
workplace bullying. The Group is committed to avoiding child and forced
labour in the workplace. Besides, all employees are strongly encouraged
to report any bullying conduct they experience through the complaint
channel provided by the Group.

The Group prohibits child labour. It requires human resource department
and user departments work together to prevent or identify child labour,
and to ensure child labour is not in the workforce. The Group is committed
to protecting human rights, to prohibiting forced labours, and to creating a
workplace with respect, fairness, and free will for the employees.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to labour
standards during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was
no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FFZE AR HME S EY L), the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour (32 1-{#FZ THR7E) , the Employment
Ordinance (fBfE1&f)and the relevant laws and regulations relating
to preventing child or forced labour that have a significant impact. In
addition, there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply chain management is a key area of the Group’s business, which
includes managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
The Group requires suppliers to provide products and services for the
Group with up-to-standard quality, health and safety to ensure compliance
with environmental laws and regulations, and labour standards. The
contracting for procurement of products and services is required to be
based solely upon specification, quality, service, price, tendering, and
applicable environmental and social considerations.
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The Group requires impartial selection of suppliers and service providers,
maximisation of competition in tendering process, approval of contract
terms, compliance with laws and regulations, prevention and detection
of bribery or fraud in the tendering and procurement process, and
accomplishment of efficiency and cost saving in procurement.

The Group established Supply Chain Management Policies, including
(i) assessment; (i) selection; (iii) approval; (iv) procurement; and (v)
performance evaluation. Performance evaluation is based on quality,
service, cost, environmental protection, and social responsibilities.

During the Year 2020, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had any significant actual and potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights and labour practices, nor
any of them had any non-compliance incident in respect of human rights
iSSues.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product responsibility refers to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to services provided. The Group has
established Product Responsibility Policies to study the overall and actual
implementation of the Group’s sustainable procurement activities and
report directly to the director and company secretary.

The Group is fully responsible for its services and products. The Group
ensures health and safety relating to the services provided and products
produced.

The Group respects its customers’ rights and is committed to providing
accurate services and products information for customers in connection
with their purchase decision. The Group requires careful review of
advertising material to protect customers’ interest.

The Group is committed to protecting customer data and privacy
information and keeping business information confidential. Training to
employees in this regard and proper information system security are
required.

Although the Group ensures the quality of its services and products, at
the same time, the Group requires that services and products with quality,
safety, or health issues should be compensated in accordance with
terms of service and products contracts. Compensation is required to be
offered to all customers who are affected with consistent treatment and
procedures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (8 AZE R (FAFR) &5 and other
applicable laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to
privacy matters in regard to products and services provided by the Group
in the Year 2020.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group established Anti-Corruption Policies to prohibit employees from
receiving any advantages offered by customers, suppliers, colleagues, or
other parties, while they are performing employee duties, and prohibit any
activities involving conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering. Staff Handbook lays out the Group’s expectation and certain
guiding provisions on code of conduct. The Group encourages employees,
customers, suppliers, or other parties to report incidents relating to any
conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was no
case of any material non-compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China (R#E AR HEMBEINK AEEHRFE),
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (B5LEBEE& (&) and the relevant
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact. In addition, there was no report
of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group endeavours to support the communities in which the Group
operates including community engagement to understand the needs of
communities, and to ensure the Group’s activities take into consideration
of the communities’ interest.

The Group strives to enlarge the business operation so that the Group can
hire more workers to utilize communities” available labour resources.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in community
activities, such as community health initiatives, sports, cultural activities,
volunteer work, and education donation. All employees of the Group are
encouraged to participate in environmental protection activities and raise
the environmental awareness of people in the communities.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and safeguarding the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance accountability and transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, except the
following deviations:—

1. Code Provision B.1.2

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee exclude
review of and making recommendations to the Board in relation
to senior management remuneration as in the Board’s opinion, it
was more appropriate for the executive directors to perform these
duties.

2. Code Provision E.1.2

Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2020 due to his
other important commitment. However, Mr. Lai Ka Fai, executive
director chaired the 2020 AGM and opened to be questioned from
the shareholders of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 55T

EFETHEHALHITES  —BIEHTESER
OB IEITES (DB IEITES)) 4Bk
EEORNECEFERERMABCENEREESE

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“INEDs"). The brief biographic details of and the relationship among
Board members is set out in the Directors Profiles section on pages 5S6EZEERBNA -EREERI=—EEEES
53 to 56. The Board has established three Board Committees, namely & EIEZEEE - ELEETAFNEE D -
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. HZE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HLIFE &FF
Attendance of the Board Meetings, the meetings of the Board Committees HFEZEEH EELE T MREAETH
and the General Meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 is given ~REEHIW F - EEGLEELZE TS ENES
below. The respective responsibilities of the Board and Board Committees i ARSI B EIBTEHERBE ©

are discussed later in this report.

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

HE/AERHEERNRY

Board Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
288 BKEET RLEEZET  HHERE M EYN
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping INFRE 7/10 12 173 012
Mr. Lai Ka Fai Py e 10110 212
Mr. Tao Ke el 410 02
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEELE 0110 012
Mr. Ng Tin Shui (nofe 1) RXEBLE W21 33 N/A R EH
Non-executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi ezt 6/10 02
Independent non-executive Directors B JFHITES
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE 8/10 33 212 33 02
Mr. Ho Hin Yip TR E 10/10 33 22 3/3 22
Mr. U Keng Tin REXEKE 10110 33 22
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David (note 2) PREBRSE Wr22) 23 NA FEH
Note: g2
1. Appointed on 9 September 2020 1 A TETEFENBNBERE
2. Appointed on 9 September 2020 2 N ZETEFNBNBERE
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All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory matters.
There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company in discharge of their
duties.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information on a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During 2020, Mr. Wong Lik Ping
served as the Chairman whereas Mr. Lai Ka Fai served as the CEO of the
Group. The Chairman provides leadership to management in respect of
operational issues. The CEO has overall chief executive responsibility for
the Group’s business development and day-to-day management generally.
The segregation ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the CEQ’s responsibility to
manage the Group's business on behalf of the Board in the operational
management of the Company. With the support of Executive Directors and
Company Secretaries, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive adequate
and reliable information in a timely manner.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board has an non-executive Director, Ms. Yip Man Yi, who mainly
oversees the Company and its business issues in a broad perspective.
Ms. Yip has been appointed for one year term from 17 October 2020 and
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four INEDs, one of the INEDs hold appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs of the Company
have been appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Assaociation.

Each of the INEDs has given the Company an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all INEDs are independent and meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution into the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the code provision A.6.5
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development activities by reading regulatory updates, and/or
attending seminars/workshops relevant to the business/Directors’ duties.
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A record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2020
was provided to the Company. The individual training record of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EEERMBE_E_EF+__A=+—HL
FEBEZNIEIEHRTEAT  FRETIEH
EFERE_ZEHF+_RA=+—HLFERE
SIFEIRYECER |

Attending

seminars/

workshops

Reading relevant to
Regulatory the business/
updates directors’ duties
HEEER

RBEEENREZ ZEZEHERMZ
BEHER B REE

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping FOTERE 4 v
Mr. Lai Ka Fai B G 4 v
Mr. Tao Ke e m] S 4 v
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEERE v 4
Mr. Ng Tin Shui BXRERE (N2 TEF

(appointed on 9 September 2020) "B NBEZD v 4
Non-Executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi BB L v
Independent non-executive Directors BIJEBITES
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE v 4
Mr. Ho Hin Yip RT3 E 4 v
Mr. U Keng Tin REXNKE v
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David RREBLEE (RZZ2F

(appointed on 9 September 2020) NBNBEZD 4 4

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies and monitors
its performance. The Board also decides on matters such as annual
and interim results, major transactions, director appointments, and
dividend and accounting policies and monitors the internal controls of
the Group’s business operation. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility of overseeing the Group’s day to day operations to
management executives.
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When the Board delegates aspect of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions would be given as to the power
of management, in particular, the circumstances where management
should report back to the Board before making decision or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Group.

Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy and policy
initiatives; (ii) provision of management reports to the Board in respect of
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects; and (iii) day-to-day
management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Diversity of Board Members Policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will be based on merit
and the candidates will be considered against measurable objectives,
taking into account the Company’s business and needs. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,
professional experience and skills. The Company will also take into
account factors based on its specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate from time to time in light of experience, evolving standards
of corporate governance and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which set out the criteria
and process in the appointment and nomination of directors, in order
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and ensure the Board continuity
and appropriate leadership.

According to the Director Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
will carry out evaluation on candidates by considering their skKills,
professional qualification, experience, independence (for independent
non-executive directors), gender, time commitment and make
recommendation to the Board based on the nomination procedure. The
Director Nomination Policy will also be reviewed from time to time in order
to satisfy the business needs and ensure compliance with the regularity
requirements as well as maintain good corporate governance practice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that
there are formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on the
remuneration of Directors. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Ho Hin Yip.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip.

During the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
review the remuneration packages of the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a
copy of which is posted on the Company’s website, are consistent with the
terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code and Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair and
transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors to the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Ho Hin Yip.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Lik Ping.
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During the year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held to review
the structure, size, composition of the Board, existing Nomination Policy
and discuss appointment of directors. In selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship, the Committee will consider the background,
experience, qualification and suitability of the candidates as well as the
Board Diversity Policy. The Board will approve the recommendations
based on the same criteria. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website, are
consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code
and Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Hin Yip, Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. U Keng
Tin. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls of
the Group, and perform the corporate governance duties. During the year,
three Audit Committee meetings were held to review the financial reporting
matters, risk management and internal control procedures of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, a copy of which is posted
on the Company’s website, are consistent with the terms set out in the
relevant section of the CG Code and Report.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code and Report, the
Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate the dealings
in the securities of the Company by certain employees of the Group who
are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

Management shall provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information presented before board meeting for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is in accordance with the
relevant requirements and applicable standards.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 66 to 73 of this
annual report.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and
procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to
manage its risks across business operations. The Group has established
a risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the functional responsible management of the Group
(“Senior Management”). The Board determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
has the overall responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation
and the overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Its improvement is an
ongoing process and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and processes. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the effectiveness of
such systems once annually, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Group has formulated
and adopted risk management policy in providing directions in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the Senior Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group'’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the
identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation
plans and risk owners are then established for those risks considered
to be significant. In addition, the Group has engaged Zhonghui Anda
Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui”) to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the
Group. The annual review plan of the Group covers major activities and
material controls including operational, financial and compliance of the
Group’s business units. It also covers the changes, since the last annual
review, in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group’s ability
to respond to changes in its business and the external environment.
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A report on the result of risk management and internal control review
report from Zhonghui was provided to the Audit Committee and the
Board in March 2021. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
had performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including but not limited to
(i) the general compliances with the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
and the disclosure requirements of the Corporate Governance Report,
(i) corporate level controls (such as the independence, experience, roles
and responsibilities of the Board and composition of each committee as
well as management monitoring activities), (iii) certain operational level
controls, and (iv) financial reporting functions. The Board concluded that
there are no material irregularities nor areas of concern that would have
significant adverse impact on the Group'’s state of affair, and that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate (including the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions) and have complied with the CG
code provisions on risk management and internal control during the year.
There was also no material breach of procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information during the year. The
Company regularly reminds the directors and the relevant staff about due
compliance and latest regulatory updates with the insider information and
other relevant regulations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the auditors of the Company
provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and the Group.

The auditor's remuneration payable to BDO Limited in relation to audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$1,600,000 and HK$145,000 respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 66 to 73.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Board
policies and procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows
and communications among Directors and its committees as well as with
shareholders and management, and between management and the non-
executive directors.
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Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Siu Wai Bun, are the joint company secretaries
of the Company. Both of Mr. Li and Mr. Siu report to Mr. Wong Lik Ping,
the Chairman of the Board.

Mr. Li Chak Hung was appointed as company secretary of the Company
on 13 March 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge during the year.

Mr. Siu Wai Bun was appointed as joint company secretary of the
Company on 6 November 2017. Mr. Siu is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. During the year, Mr. Siu
undertook more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room
2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong
Kong at Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy for striking a right balance
between rewarding its shareholders by sharing a portion of the profits and
meeting adequate cash reserves for its working capital requirements and
future prospects of the Company. With reasonable but not pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio, the proposed amount of dividends will be
made at the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’s
operational results, cash flow situation, financial conditions, capital
expenditure requirements, general business conditions and strategies,
future economic environment, statutory and regulatory restrictions and
any other factors that the Board may deem relevant. The policy will be
reviewed from time to time so as to keep in line with the change of market
conditions and other factors as the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
has established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the
annual general meeting, the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the website of the Company
at www.egichk.com. During the year, the Company has adopted a new
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Lik Ping, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Group. He joined
the Group in August 2012 and is responsible for overall leadership
strategic planning, business development and Board issues of the Group.
He was (i) an executive director and a vice-chairman of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (stock code: 639) from March 2009
to December 2015 and (i) an executive director and the chairman of
Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from November
2009 to January 2016, both companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He is a director and the sole shareholder of Worldkin
Development Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”),
Mr. Wong is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He has extensive experience in trading
business, financial industry and investments in a wide range of businesses
in the PRC.

Mr. Lai Ka Fai, aged 52, joined the Group in June 2010 and was
appointed as an executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company in January 2012 and November 2017 respectively. Mr. Lai
is responsible for the corporate governance, administration and new
business development of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom, a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a
Master degree of Business Administration from the University of Leicester
in the United Kingdom. He is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and has over 20 years of experience
in the legal field.

Mr. Tao Ke, aged 38, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 6 March 2015. Mr. Tao holds a Master of Social Science
degree from University of Glasgow and a Bachelor degree in Economics
from Beijing Institute of Technology. Mr. Tao has extensive experience in
corporate finance and overseas merger and acquisition. He had been
worked in international investment banks and responsible for clients’
project management, project acquisition and various initial public
offerings. Mr. Tao is currently a general manager of a chemical production
group in Shandong.
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Mr. Qiao Weibing, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 17 March 2016. Mr. Qiao holds a bachelor degree
from Shanxi University and a master degree in management engineering
from China University of Mining and Technology. Mr. Qiao has over 20
years' working experience in the government regulatory authorities and
financial institutions in the PRC. Mr. Qiao is currently the chief investment
officer of the Company and the chairman and CEO of Beijing Ever Grand
International Finance Lease Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company in the
PRC.

Mr. Ng Tin Shui, aged 66, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree of
science in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan
in Canada. He was the chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Merchants
Association between 2008 and 2014. He is also the life time member of
the American Society of Mechanical Engineers. Mr. Ng has over 30 years
of experience in trading of a variety of pharmaceutical products, health
supplement, personal care and other healthcare products (collectively
“Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products”). Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Ng was involved in sales and corporate management in the trading
of Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products, including KT&G Ginseng
and Tiger Balm, which were first authorised products for distribution
in Hong Kong. Recently, his scope of work and experience expanded
to the investment in the research and development and production of
biotechnologies, including application of algae and marine ingredients,
plant stem cell and Car-T cell specialised in the cancer DNA reading and
implanting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yip Man Yi, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company in October 2019. Ms. Yip was graduated from Seneca
College of Applied Arts and Technology, Toronto, Canada and has over
20 years’ experience in financial market and money market. Ms. Yip has
been worked with HSBC Market (Asia) Limited for Global Markets and
companies listed on both the Main and the GEM Boards of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She was actively involved in formulating
investment strategy and was responsible for overseeing the operation of
various investment projects. Ms. Yip was appointed as executive director
and chairman of Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code:
8173), a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange from
December 2015 to November 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in January 2012. He has over 20
years of experience in PRC-related, corporate and securities practice. He
is currently a consultant of Ma Tang & Co, Solicitors, a law firm in Hong
Kong. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in 1995. He has become a member of The Law Society
of Hong Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
1997. He is currently an independent non-executive director of each of
Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (stock code: 1314) and Huajin International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2738), all of which are companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was appointed as the company
secretary of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from December
2013 to November 2018.

Mr. Ho Hin Yip, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in December 2012. He is presently
the Financial Controller and Joint Company Secretary of Singapore-
listed Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited, where he is responsible for the
finance and accounting functions, statutory compliance and corporate
governance affairs. He has more than 20 years of financial and auditing
experience. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He also acts as an independent non-
executive director of each of Jiyi Household International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1495), Hope Life International Holdings Limited (stock
code:1683) from August 2015 to February 2017 and from August 2018
to July 2019) and Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309)
(from December 2014 to 1 April 2020), all of which are companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. U Keng Tin, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in May 2013. He holds the Bachelor's
degree of Arts from York University, Canada and Master's degree of Arts
in International Economics from University of San Francisco, USA. He is
presently a director of an estate management company, Full Fill Services
Co., Limited and a director of a brokerage house, Bloomyears Limited. He
also acts as a non-executive director of Noble Engineering Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8445) since September 2020. He has over 30 years
of experience in the securities industry.
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Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Leung
holds a Bachelor's degree of Pharmacy from National Defense Medical
Center, School of Pharmacy in Taipei Taiwan, and a master of Science
Clinical Pharmacy from University of Sunderland in the UK. He obtained
a pharmacist registration and practising certificate from Pharmacy &
Poisons Board of Hong Kong. Over 15 years, Mr. Leung has been working
as pharmacist and/or consultant in various dispensaries and medical
centers where he is responsible for operation, strategic planning and
execution of pharmaceutical business. He has been an adjunct lecturer of
Pharmaceuticals and Pharmacology in HKU SPACE. Mr. Leung has over
20 years of experience, qualifications and exposure in sales and supply
and business management of pharmaceutical and healthcare products in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC markets.
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The Board is pleased to present this Report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and segment information for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in note 5 and note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 74
and 75 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 239 and 240 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2020, in the opinion of the directors, the Company's
share premium and reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to 263,887,000.

Movement in the share premium and reserves of the Group during the
year are set out on page 78 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers represented 17% and 67% of the Group’s revenue in
2020 respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers represented 57% and 98% of the Group’s purchases
in 2020 respectively.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital has any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions during the year are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Wong Lik Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Ka Fai

Mr. Tao Ke

Mr. Qiao Weibing

Mr. Ng Tin Shui

Non-executive director
Ms. Yip Man Yi

Independence non-executive directors
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee

Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. U Keng Tin

Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Qiao Weibing and Mr. Tao Ke shall retire from offices by rotation in the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Ng Tin Shui and Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David shall retire from office
in the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographic details of the existing directors are set out on pages 53 to
and 56 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 29 July 2016. As at 31 December
2019, a total outstanding number of share options were granted to
the eligible employees, including directors of the Company, amounted
to 19,833,334. With no share options lapsed and new share options
granted during the year, the outstanding number of share options as at
31 December 2020 shrunk to 1,983,333 solely due to the completion
of the share consolidation of the basis of every 10 issued and unissued
shares consolidated into 1 consolidated share on 26 March 2020. Details
of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors have any interest in competing business to the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2020, the following directors and chief executive of
the Company have the following interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code:

Long and short positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the
Company:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HEGRE

EERIBTHRABRRS
FERR AR D R AR S R 2 A 2

PN
/XJ’E

N ECERFE+ZR=+—HB ARE THESR
REBITHAERE AT TEAEREE (E&
REH MRS RBIEXVER) Z iR 5 ~ FBRAIRD K
BB A AT NIRIEE S MBS RGIE
MG EFE 2 FMz #m ke NiREE
5 R HR B 1) SEXVER B 7 e 8 S R A2 #E <P R A
ST R AR R R 2 R sk B W T -

RAERBEBR MERRHDZFRRNA

Number of share/underlying shares held

FERR /R EE

Number of

underlying

shares held

under equity Long(L) or

Personal Corporate derivatives Total Short(S)  Percentage of
interests interests (Note 2) interests Position interests

IRIERHENTE

TARHER

RHEE ¥R
Directors/chief executive BEE/TETHAE UG5 YNG4 Wz2) Ly KBS  HEHEIM
Wong Lik Ping INF 46,600,000 145,500,000 - 192,100,000 S 11.39%
(Notel)
"zt1)

Ng Tin Shui RXRE 56,570,000 L 3.35%
Qiao Weibing BEE 333,333 333,333 L 0.020%
Lai Ka Fai REE 133,333 133333 L 0.008%
Tao Ke 5] 100,000 100,000 L 0.006%
Goh Choo Hwee RER 66,667 66,667 L 0.004%
Ho Hin Yip EEHES 66,667 66,667 L 0.004%
U Keng Tin REX 66,667 66,667 L 0.004%
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R
Notes:
1. These interests are held by Worldkin Development Limited (“Worldkin”) which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Lik Ping. Mr. Wong is therefore deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Worldkin. The interests held by Worldkin are disclosed under the
section headed “SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” below.

2. These interests represented the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company to the directors/chief executive. Details of which are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive and their
associated had any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive have been granted unlisted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the directors, chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to
have any long positions or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which
has been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code of the Listing Rules.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

MfaE

L ZERBREHBRARAT () 356 Mt
BENTRERERA Rt EAERR AR Y
A2 RIS B MR T E
BRE R

2 ZERBIEARSARRTES TETHARN
FERRHE BT RARR 1A M o BB A R A RIS AN
31

bR EXFIREEEIN BIRES EBITHRAER

REZMBAR AR NEEEERER (&
RBHFRHAGREIEXVED Zin ~ 18RI 5
REET %E‘E§%BE§$’Aﬂ$E?FE§%&HH
E1RISE352(R AT B2 B 2 A mal
B IRESE S RAIER 1§|J§§XV*B%7)§’28’UBEZ
RESTRIASTHERA T KRBT Z
KA

ESkEFETBRASREERK
BR R R Z HEF

REAABERESE EFRTBITHAEE
ERTIFLmERE FEEINREMHRE
FyzE31 e

MR EXFREEIN R BF+ B =+—
B> BIEANREE  FTETRABKRKEE
VAR RBEIREERE®E (CREFSRAE
ERBIEXVER) 2 B {7 ~ 1BRER D S EEFZ PR
AR EERS BN AR BERIEE S KPS
BB EIEFEZELMzBFTEI A HIR
B MR RETR B g AN B KRB FT
2R A



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, in accordance with the register of the
substantial shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules, the following persons were interest
(including short positions) in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.

Interest in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company:
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Number of
Shares/ Long(L) or
underlying Short (S) Percentage
Notes Shares held positions holding
FERR #EWL)
Name of Shareholders RERRE s Mzt L] FKBE(S) FRE AL
Worldkin Development Limited HEEREFRAT 145,500,000 S 8.62%
Mr. Wong Lik Ping EHFELE 1 192,100,000 S 11.39%
Funde Sino Life Insurance Co. Ltid. B2y ASERRED
BRAT 357,443,000 L 21.18%
Win Wind Resources Limited BRERERAE 2 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Oshidori International Holdings Limited B ZEREIZIG B FRA S 243 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Win Wind Capital Limited BREABERAE 2K3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Ms. Chi Chin TEZL 5 192,270,000 L 11.40%
Expert Magic Limited Expert Magic Limited 257,000,000 L 15.23%
Mr. Lam Tsun On WEZIE 4 257,000,000 L 15.23%
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HHEEGRE
Notes:
1. Mr. Wong Lik Ping holds entire equity interest of Worldkin Development Limited

(“Worldkin”) and is accordingly deemed to have interest in 145,500,000 shares of
the Company that Worldkin has interests in. Mr. Wong personally owns 46,600,000
shares of the Company.

2. Win Wind Resources Limited has security interests in 192,100,000 shares.

3. Win Wind Resources Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Win Wind Capital
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Oshidori International Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Oshidori International Holdings Limited is deemed to have interests in
192,100,000 shares held by Win Wind Resources Limited.

4, Mr. Lam Tsun On holds 65% equity interest of Expert Magic Limited (“Expert Magic”)
and is deemed to be a controlling shareholder of Expert Magic.

(5) Out of the 192,270,000 Shares which Ms. Chi Chin was interested in, (i)
135,700,000 were held by Ms. Chi Chin as the beneficial owner, and (ii) 56,570,000
Shares were held by her spouse, Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 40 to 52 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the
benefit of the directors of the Group is currently in force and was in
force during the year. The Company has taken out insurance against the
liabilities and costs associated with proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Group.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the amount
of public float as approved by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
permitted under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the coming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 8 June 2021 to 11 June 2021 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares in the Company will
be effected. In order to qualify for entittement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m., 7 June 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 were audited by Messrs. BDO Limited (“BDO”).

A resolution to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
J LA MR

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74
to 238, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of finance lease receivables
(Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had finance lease receivables of
net carrying amount approximately HK$168.0 million, and impairment
of approximately HK$143.7 million has been made over the balance. It
represents 14.2% of total assets of the Group.

Loss allowances for finance lease receivables are based on management'’s
estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into account the credit loss experience, past collection
history, subsequent settlement of each finance lease customer, and also
relevant deposits received, pledge of leased assets and guarantees and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management judgement.

We identified the impairment of finance lease receivables as a key audit
matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements,
and the assessment of the recoverability of finance lease receivables
and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgement, which increases the risk of error or
potential management bias.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of finance lease receivables (Continued)
Our responses:

- Obtaining an understanding of the Group's impairment provision
policy and methodology for impairment assessment in relation to
the application of the ECL model;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
finance lease arrangement past due as at year end date and
corroborating explanations from management with supporting
evidence, such as understanding credit status of debtors,
checking historical and subsequent settlement records and other
correspondence with the debtors;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the ECL model methodology
and related parameter, including probability of default, loss given
default, and risk exposure at default used by the management’s
expert;

- Involving an auditor's expert to assist our assessment on the
impairment on finance lease receivables arising from finance lease
arrangement;

- Evaluating the independence, competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditors’ expert.

Impairment of loan receivables
(Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of loan receivables
and its related impairment allowance amount to HK$104.3 million and
HK$137.1 million respectively. Impairment allowance for credit exposure
at Stage 3 amounted to HK$133.6 million.

The assessment of impairment for loan receivables involves significant
management judgements and estimates on the amount of expected credit
loss at the reporting date.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward looking analysis.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)
Our responses:

- Understanding of the Group’s credit risk management and
practices, and assessed the Group’s impairment provisioning
policy in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on i) the level of
disaggregation of portfolios for impairment assessment; ii) the
use of reasonable and supportable credit risk information that is
available without undue cost or effort; and iii) the staging criteria
for determining if a significant increase in credit risk has occurred;

- Testing the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
significant increase in credit risk and the basis for classification
of exposures into 3 stages. Our testing included the checking to
loan overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or other related
information, and considering the stage classification determined
by the Group;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the ECL model methodology
and related parameter, including probability of default, loss given
default, and risk exposure at default used by the management's
expert;

- Involving an auditor's expert to assist our assessment on the
impairment on receivable from sale-leaseback transaction arising
from sale-leaseback arrangement;

- Evaluating the independence, competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor's expert;

- Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation to
impairment of loan receivables, which included in Note 19 and 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we have
obtained Management Discussion and Analysis but have not obtained the
remaining other information included in the annual report (the “Remaining
Other Information”), which is expected to be made available to us after
that date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
b2 Gl e

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Remaining Other Information, if we conclude there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate that
matter to the directors and take appropriate action considering our legal
rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
b2 Gl e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate Number PO5309

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

froiHm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_E_ZF+_A=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ETF T—E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHET TFHET
Revenue WA 5 66,184 71,155
Cost of revenue NN (82,552) (49,354)
Gross (loss)/profit (EH) EF (16,368) 21,801
Other income =R N 7 8,245 10,500
Other gains and losses Hithm K518 7 34,801 (583)
Administrative expenses TERX (123,697) (64,255)
Impairment loss on: PRI ST
Receivable from E &I Z B
a sale-leaseback transaction 19 (96,896) (5,678)
Finance lease receivables BB BRI 18 (102,530) (32,578)
Loan receivables ERER 19 (3,380) (1,211)
Goodwill EEES 15 - (9,373)
Property, plant and equipment L ENEEYSEL 13 (5,089) -
Interest in an associate upon BN NEAFEHEZ
reclassification to assets classified as BERBNR—BERAZ
held for sale i 16(d) (30,973)
Share of results of associates Pag: 3 L/N=IE (5,664) 29,389
Other expenses HAupaXZ (661) (773)
Finance costs AL (391) -
Loss before taxation FRIGAIES 1B (342,603) (52,761)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigin (2 g% 9 (13,975) 1,798
Loss for the year KEEEE 10 (356,578) (50,963)
Loss for the year attributable to: REETHEIERE(LEIE
Owners of the Company PN/NEIE DN (242,933) (34,132)
Non-controlling interests SRR SR i (113,645) (16,831)
(356,578) (50,963)
(Restated)
Ge=gal)
Loss per share (HK cents) SEE GBI
Basic BN 11 (16.09) (2.86)
Diluted e (16.09) (2.86)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aoyt S HAth i e 2R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_ZF+_F=+—HILFEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss for the year KEERIE (356,578) (50,963)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hht2ml A~ FEIxR)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: A EEHHIEEEBH AR !
Exchange difference arising on translation to MBEREEMES ZERELR
presentation currency 3,417 (15,719)
Fair value change on equity investment at fair AT EZBHEMEEmWASERZ
value through other comprehensive income AL E 7 A EEE) (3,563) -
Share of other comprehensive income of DS AR EMEEWA
associates (16) -
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMPERASZ (OBRPIER)
for the year, net of income tax (162) (15,719)
Total comprehensive expense AEELHEMAZLEEE
for the year (356,740) (66,682)
Total comprehensive expense REETHEIERG 2 EESZIEEE .
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (242,695) (47 518)
Non-controlling interests JEERR IS Bt i (114,045) (19,164)
(356,740) (66,682)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ar e IR

At 31 December 2020 MN_E_THF+_F=+—H

2020 2019
ZEIERFE CZE-hE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LY EN =Yy 13 90,112 93,811
Investment properties REMZE 14 148,331 133,521
Goodwill S 15 25,556 -
Interests in associates N =N 16 95,111 338,206
Equity investments at fair value through BATEEBEMEEmBA
other comprehensive income SRR 7 IR & 17 123,781 55,517
Finance lease receivables RAETEEEWE 18 14,132 69,913
Loan receivables RS 19 21,733 26,151
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 30 1,579 1,324
Restricted bank deposits ZIREISRITIER 24 20,724 19,520
Deposits & 22 11,876 11,186
552,935 749,149
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =58 20 19,060 2137
Contingent consideration receivables FEUR R IARIE 25 2,553 -
Finance lease receivables RIBEEEWE 18 153,913 339,309
Loan receivables EURER 19 82,614 214,212
Trade receivables B SR 21 2,976 -
Other receivables, deposits and HEWRE - e RN IE
prepayments 22 43,903 18,612
Financial assets at fair value BN EEBERSIRZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 156,052 25,678
Deposit placed with non-bank GFRICIEIRITERMIEE 2
financial institutions T3 24 39,227 90,545
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 24 132,483 107,033
632,781 797,526

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR E B IR IR

At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
“E-RFg ZE—hE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$’000
st FHET FAT
Current liabilities mEaE
Service cost payables, other payables FETARFE B A ~ ELfh BTN
and accruals K FESTE R 26 88,283 28,651
Contract liabilities a8l — 2,563
Financial liability at fair value through AT EEBERIIRZ
profit or loss By =L 28 = 15,660
Tax payable FEIHRIE 21,105 14,251
Borrowings EEN 27 458,603 523,654
567,991 584,779
Net current assets REBEERE 64,790 212,747
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTHEE 617,725 961,896
Capital and reserves BEXRRHE
Share capital &N 29 168,730 119,192
Reserves = 399,333 621,227
Equity attributable to owners of the KNBVEB AL
Company 568,063 740,419
Non-controlling interests JEVE G AR B M o 6,555 120,600
Total equity 4ERERE 574,618 861,019
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deposits received from customers S EY=F 18 27,100 24,872
Borrowings EEN 27 14,786 69,633
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 30 1,221 6,372
43,107 100,877
617,725 961,896

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and are signedon MR- ZE - —F=FA " +NHEES A 1T

s behalf by: MU TEFRESE |
WONG LIK PING LAI KA FAI
E7F REE
Director Director
i #E
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CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Sz ogg
Gr e Tt A ) 3R
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_E_ZF+_A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRA AR
Share Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation options Other  revaluation Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
BlE REEfR E320

RE  BbEE  ERERE i Hitds fife
HKS000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000
T T TEn TEn TEn T

iEhE  2H6R Nt REEE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T TiEn TiEn TiEn T

(Note b) (Note a)
(3 b) (Hza)
At 1 January 2019 R-%-nE-E-H 119,192 1520921 (5,328) 1,136 - 3,450 6,397 (857,831) 787,937 139,764 927,701
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - - - (34,132) (34,132) (16,831) (50,963)
Other comprehensive expense FEEEMRERT
for the year - - (13,386) - - - - - (13,386) (2,333) (15,719)
Total comprehensive expense FEERERIAR
for the year - - (13,386) - - - - (34,132 (47,518) (19,164) (66,682)
Share options lapsed BRERN - - - (409) - - - 409 - - -
At 31 December 2019 and EA 713
1 January 2020
119,192 1520921 (18,714) 721 - 3,450 6,397 (891,554) 740,419 120,600 861,019
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - - - (42933 (242933  (113645)  (365,578)
Other comprehensive incomef(expense) AEEEMEE
forthe year WA/ B - - 2,085 - - (1,847) - - 238 (400) (162)
Total comprehensive incomel(expense)  AEE2H
forthe year WA/ (%) 48 - - 2,085 - - (1,847) - (242933)  (242,695) (114,045  (356,740)
Issue of shares upon TREEREARG
completion of placing 23,838 8407 - - - - - - 32,245 - 32,245
Issue of shares upon acquision WE-ZHBATE
of a subsidiary LG 25,700 28,270 - = (15,876) - - - 38,094 - 38,094
Transfer to accumulated losses upon~ HE-FHENT SR
disposal of an associate EEHEE - - 14,965 - - - - (14,965) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIBZZE
+-A=1+-8 168,730 1,557,598 (1,664) 727 (15,876) 1,603 6397 (1,149,452 568,063 6,555 574,618
Note: BT
(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of  (a) IR A REME (THREL) BRERAEEIRRE »

China (the “PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after taxation to the
statutory reserve (except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the directors
of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital.

(b) Other reserve represents the value of the contingent consideration arrangement on (b)
the escrow shares subject to the profit guarantee requirement of the acquisition
agreement as set out in note 43(a).

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=
;-\7I‘ |:| fﬁlﬂi’:{ﬁ%%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &#E_ZF_ZTFE+_HA=+—HIFE
2020 2019
HK$ 900 HK$'000
FAT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SR
Loss before taxation PRIGAIES IR (342,603) (52,761)
Adjustments for: EHTEZE
Finance costs TSR A 40,105 40,289
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- -BEKREZEZITE 5,391 5,303
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair BATEEBERSEZ
value through profit or loss EMEEZ AT EEES) 2,548 5,208
Change in fair value on investment properties KREMEZ NEEE) (4,091) (645)
Dividend income g SR (969) -
Share of results of associates DEME RN B ES 5,664 (29,389)
Impairment loss on goodwill e R AR = 9,373
Write-off of property, D2~ BR B B s i
plant and equipment 11
Impairment loss on property, Y BB R RS R E RS 18
plant and equipment 5,089 -
Impairment loss on interest in an associate upon  EHE NS HEHREHDIEE DA
reclassification to assets classified as held for AEEHEEEZBEERE
sale 30,973 -
Exchange gain, net U FRE (17,784) -
Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary JJ:EE‘”-%W%@TZH&%E (2,742) -
Fair value change on financial liability Tt&’&iFTELL?Eﬁﬁ@J [
at fair value through profit or loss BB AT EES (15,660) (11,662)
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables BB SR UR(EER 102,530 32,578
Impairment loss on receivable from EREERZEWERBERSE
sale-leaseback transaction 96,896 5,678
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWN EFURERS 18 3,380 1,211
Change in fair value of contingent consideration  FEURTNIARE 2 A FEEE)
receivables 2,498 -
Finance lease interest income RMEREF SWA (14,190) (29,136)
Sale-leaseback transaction interest income EBEMERZHEWA (706) (13,184)
Write-off of inventories FEEE 419 833
Interest income B A (6,339) (3,393)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEEREFA KERERE
working capital (109,580) (39,697)
Increase in inventories FEEM (14,288) (2,882)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, deposits ~ ELMFEUL R ~ 1% 5 K FE 1S =B
and prepayments @ghm) R (23,926) 21,651
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 SRR D 78 -
(Decrease)/increase in service cost payables, other FE{TARTFS B2 « E fth &S =R R FE 5T
payables and accruals &R (AL 1Eh0 (945) 1,932
Decrease in deposits received from customers BE R EEELD - (321)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value AT (EFBERYIRZ
through profit or loss SREE (M R (132,094) 26,864
Decrease in finance lease receivables BB AR B FEUR R - 14,510
Increase in loan receivables EREHERZ EWETIE
from sale leaseback transaction - (151,096)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits placed with B & R ENER
financial institutions L (g 51,318 (7,654)
Cash used in operations KEFAZIRE (229,437) (136,693)
Income tax paid EAIPTEH (14,142) (15,835)
Finance lease interest income received BWEEREF S WA 14,190 29,136
Sale-leaseback transaction interest BNERLEIERZHEWA
income received 706 13,184
Interest element of lease rental paid BENHESHF B - (5)
Interest paid BAFIE (13,320) (40,289)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZEBFAAZIRE 3 (242,003) (150,502)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERemER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—_ v — E = _j-l-'ﬁi
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mk FET TAET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Investment in equity investments RiRAFEBEBEEMEE

at fair value through other WWABEE 2 B RER &

comprehensive income (74,340) (21,253)
Addition of loan receivables FER EFIE N (50,378) (83,759)
Repayment from loan receivables BERWER 95,523 154,151
Purchases of property, BEWE - BERRE

plant and equipment (534) (46,706)
Purchases of investment property EERXEY= (32,947) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising from WHEN B AR EE

acquisition of subsidiaries BE£RA (Rt) FEE 43a 4,609 (160,050)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BB KRB

plant and equipment FrigsIE - 215
Proceeds from held to maturity of BAFEZEBEHMEE

equity investments at fair value through WABER Z 15 A E 2 HA

other comprehensive income R EFREIE 5,938 -
Acquisition of associates BB E A B (55,529) -
Proceed from disposal of interest HER—FKBERNE 2

in an associate HEmPTS e 335,664 -
Dividend received B E 969 -
Interest received BWFHE 6,339 3,738
NET CASH GENERATED REZEFRET (FrA)

FROM/(USED IN) REFEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 235,314 (153,664)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RLEEE
Proceeds from borrowings B FERIa 36 20,000 151,011
Repayment of borrowings BIRE™M 36 (20,283) -
Proceeds from shares placing APBC &SRB 32,245 -
Capital element of lease rental paid B HEENE AR - (377)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEBIFR IR B ER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 31,962 150,634
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERRE%EY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS )| D - B2 25,273 (153,532)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FVRERAEEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 107,033 262,123
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SMEEREE 2R

RATE CHANGES 177 (1,558)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END F4&IREKRIREHEY

OF YEAR 132,483 107,033
Represented by: (RVE

Bank balances and cash IRITEFRAIRE 132,483 107,033

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e W BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_ZF+_F=+—HILFEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section on the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are provision of finance
lease and related consulting services in the PRC, the trading of
equity securities, investment in properties, investment holdings,
sale of food additives, sale of medical, health and hygiene
products and money lending business.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") as the directors consider that it is a more
appropriate presentation for a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and for the convenience of the shareholders.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of amended HKFRSs - effective at 1 January
2020

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of

the Group:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of amended HKFRSs - effective at 1 January
2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
introduce an optional concentration test that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election to
apply the concentration test is made for each transaction.
The concentration test is met if substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business. If the
concentration test is failed, the acquired set of activities
and assets is further assessed based on the elements of a
business.

The Group elected to apply the amendments prospectively
to acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 January 2020. As described in note 43(a), the Group
acquired a set of activities and assets in August 2020 and
elected to apply the concentration test to that transaction
but the transaction failed the concentration test. Based
on the assessment of elements of a business, the Group
concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is a
business.
